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Introduction CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

1. Defendant RAMON DAVILA was employed by various companies. including
USIS (formerly U.S. Investigative Services), ManTech MSM Security Services, Inc.
(“ManTech™), and Svstems Application & Technologies, Inc. (“SA-TECH™). as an investigator
under contract to conduct background investigations on behalf of the United States Office of
Personnel Management (“OPM™). an agency within the executive branch of the federal
government located in Washington, D.C.

2. OPM's Federal Investigative Services Division (“FISD™). formerly known as the
Center for Federal Investigative Services and now known as Federal Investigative Services
(~FIS™). was responsible for conducting background invesugations tor numerous lederal agencies

and their contractors. OPM-FISD had an investigator workiorce compromised of federal agents
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emploved by OPM-TISD and mvestigators employed by vanous companies, such as USIS,
ManTech. and SA-TECH, under contract with OPM-FISD to conduct background investiganons.
OPM-FISD conducted background investigations of individuals who were either employed by or
seeking employment with agencies or govermnment conactors. [he purpose of the background
investigations was to determine individuals® suitability for positions having access 1o classified
mnformation, for posimons mpactng nationa! security, and for receiving or retaining Security
clearances

In conduneting these background investigations, contract investugators would

)

conduct interviews of mndividuals who had information about the person who was the subject of
the background investiganion. In addition. conwact investigators would seek out, obtain, and
review documentary evidence, such as emplovment records, to verify and corroborate
nformation provided by either the subject oI the background investigation or by persons
interviewed during the investigation. After conducting interviews and obtaining documentarv
avidence, contract investigators would prepars a Report of Investigation ("ROI™), containing the
rasults of the interviews and records reviews, and would electronicelly submit the ROI to OPM

in Washington, D.C. OPM would then provide a copy of the investigative file to the requesting
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COUNT 1
Making a False Statement

W

T'he allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stated in full
6. On or about January 30, 2007, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere,

defendant DAVILA, 1n 2 matter within the jurisdicuon of the executive branch of the
government of the United States, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious,
and fraudulent statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investigation of
D.S., defendant DAVILA represented the fcllowing:

a. that he had interviewsed K.J. about D.S., when, in wuth and 1n fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed X.J aboumi D.S..

b. that he had interviewsd M.R. about D.S., when, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILLA had not interviewed MR, about D.S.;

C. that he had interviewed W.M. about D.S., when, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed W.M. about D.S.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1061)

COUNT 2
Making a False Statement
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and fraudulent statement and representation. in that in 2 ROI of a background investngation of
TL., defendant DAVILA represented the foliowing:

2. that he had interviewed R.J. about J.L., when, 10 wuth and 1n fact,

defendan: DAVILA had not interviewed R.J. about J.L

ol that he had interviewed S.R. about J.L., when, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVHLA had nét interviewed S.R. about J.L ;

c. -hat he had interviewed T.B. abour J.L.. whan, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed T.B. about I.L.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 3
Makine a False Statement

S. The allegations coataining iz paragraphs one through Tour of this Indictment are

incorporated herein by reference as if stated mn full.

On or about January 29, 2007, o the District of Columbia and elsewhers,

—
(]

defendan: DAVILA, in 2 matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the

government of the United States, did knowingly and willfnily make a materially false, fictidous,
znd Feudulent steiemert and representation, 10 that in a ROT of 2 background investigation of
K.S.. defendant DAVILA representad thet he had interviewed £ H. zbout K.S., whern, in Tuth

327endenT1 DAVILA Rad not mrerviswad D H anot KOS

Making a False Statement in Vielation of Title 15, Unired States Code, Section 1G01)



COLUNT 4
Making a False Statement

The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four oI this Indictmen: are

—a
ot

incorporated herein by reference as if stated 1n full.

On or about March 21, 2007, in the Dismicr of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant

ot
(3]

DAVTILA. in a2 matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the
Urited States, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent
statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investigation of M.L., defendant
DAVILA represented that he had mterviewed L.B. about M.L.. when. 1n wuth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed L.B. about M.L

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 3
Making a False Statement

-
L

The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stazed in ull.

14 On or about March 21, 2007, in the Dismict of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant

clv 2nd willfullv make a meterially false. Octitious. and fTaudulent
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COLUNT 6
Makine a False Statement

15 The aliegations containing in paragraphs one througt four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stated in Tull.

16. On or about March 22, 2007, in the Dismict of Columbiz and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in & matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the
United States, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictizious, and frandulent
statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investigation of J.B., defendamt
DAVTLA represented that he had reviewed records provided by J.A. about I.B., when, in Tuth
and in fact, defendant DAVILA had not recerved anv records from J.A. about J.B.

(Making a False Statement in Vielation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 7
Makinec a False Statement

17. The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are

My

incorporated herein by reference as it stzted in full.
18. On or abour Marck 22. 2007, in the Distict of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in 2 memner withun the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the

United Stzrzs. 2id knowingly end willtully meke 2 materially false, fcutous. and Tandulert

™
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Making a False Statement

19. The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are

incorporated herein by reference as if stated in rull,
ere, defendant

20. On or about March 23, 2007, in the District of Columbiz and elsewhere

DAVILA, in 2 matrer within the junisdiction of the execunve branch of the government of the
United States, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and randulent

statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investiganon of A.H., defendant

DAVILA represented the following:

a. thart he had reviewed records provided by B.J. about A.H., when, in truth

and in faci, defendant DAVILA had not received any records from B.J. about A H ;

that he had reviewed records provided by B.M. abour A.H., when, in truth
znd in fact, defendant DAVILA had not received any records from B.M. about A H.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 9
Making a False Statement
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iefendant DAVILA had not interviewed J.R. zbow A H.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 10
Making a False Statement

23. The allegations containing 1n paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stated in full.
24, On or about May 31, 2007, in the Dismict of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant

DAVILA. in a2 matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the

4

nited States, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent
statement and representation. in that in a ROI of a background investigation of A.H., defendant

DAVILA represented the followin

9

a that he had reviewed records provided by B.J. about A.H., when, in truth

and in fact, defandant DAVILA had not received any records from B.J. about A.H.;

b thet he had reviewed records provided by J.R.. about A H., whea. in truth
and in fact, defendant DAVILA had not recaived any records from J.R.. apout A H.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code. Section 1001)

COUNT 11
Maldng a Falce Statement
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stetement and representanon, in that in a2 ROI of a background investigation of W.B., defendant
DAVTLA represented that he had interviewed B.O. about W.B., when, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed B.O. about W.B.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 12
Malking a False Statement

27. The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stated m full,

28. On or about April 2, 2007, in the District of Columbiz and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in 2 matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the
United States, 4id knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and frandulent
statement and representation, in that in 2 ROI of a background invesngartion of K. W., defendant
DAVTILA represented that he had interviewed D.F. about K.W., when, in truth and in fact,

iefendant DAVILA had not interviewed D.F. about K.W.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 13
Making a False Statement
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el

DAVIL A represented that he had interviewed M T, about D.H.. when, in truth and in fact,

jefendan DAVILA had not mmierviewed M. T about D.H.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 14
Maldng a False Statement

[

The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment arz

mmcorporated herein by reference as if stated in full.

)

Z. On or ebomt May 29, 2007, 1n the Diswmict of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant

L

DAVIL A, in a matter within the jurisdiction of the execurive branch o the government of the

United

States, did knowingly and willtully make a materiallv false, fictitious. and fraudulent

statement and representation, in that in 2 ROI of a background investigation of D.H., defendant

DAVILA represented that he had interviewed J.K. about D.H., when, in truth and 1n fact,

defendant DAVILA had not interviewed J.X. about D.H.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 158
Malking a False Statement
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a. Tnat he had reviewed records provided by K.D. abowr G.B., when, in truth
anc in fact, defendant DAVILA had not received anv records rom K.D. about G.B.;
B that he had interviewed K.D. about G.B., when. in truth and in fact,
efendant DAVILA had not interviewed K.D. about G.B.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 16
Making a False Statement

The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictiment are

(WE)
n

incorporated herein by reference as if stated ia full.

26. On or about May 30, 2007, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in a metter within the furisdiction of the execuuve branch of the government of the
United States, dic knowingly and willfully make a2 materizllv false, fctitious, and frandulent
statemenst and representation, in thar in 2 ROI of a background investigation of S.C., defendant
DAVTILA represented that he had interviewed W.P. about S.C.. when. in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed W.P. about S.C.

(Making a False Statement in Vieolation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 17
Making a False Statement
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statement and represenianion, in thar in 2 ROI of a background invesngasior of J W, defendant

DAVILA repressntad that he had interviewed B.D. about J.W.. when, 1 truth and in fact.
defendant DAVIILA had not interviewed B.D. about I.W.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COTUNT 18
Malane a2 False Statement

59. The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four o7 this Indictment are

incorporated herein by reference as if stated in full,

40. n or about June 1, 2007, in the District of Columbiza and eisewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in a mater within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the
United States, did knowinglv and willfully make a materially false, fictitiouns, and frandulent
statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investigation of I.W., defendant

DAVILA represented that he had reviewed records provided by B.D about J.W., when, in truth

and in fact, defendant DAVILA had not received any records from B.D. about J.W.

‘/l

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 19
Making a False Statement
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DAVILA represented that thert he had reviewed records provided by A M. abour D.H., when, in
trutk and in fact, defendant DAVILA had not received any records from A M. about D.H.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 20
Making a False Statement

43. The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporated herein by reference as if stated in full.

44, On or about June 19, 2007, in the District of Columbia and elsewhere, defendan:
DAVILA, in a mauer within the jurisdiction of the execurive branch of the government of the
United States, did knowingly and willfully make a materielly false, fictiious, and frandulent
statement and representation, in that in a ROI of a background investigation of S.L.. defendant

“PDAVILA represented the following:

that he had interviewed C.S. about S.L., when, in wuth and in fact,

P)

efendant DAVILA had not interviewed C.S. about S.L.;
k. thet he nad interviewed S.L. about S.L., when, 1n wuth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not mmierviewed S L. about S.L.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code. Section 1001)

COUNT 21
Making 2 False Statement
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[ -~ 1.

United States, did knowinglyv and w1
szatement and representation, in that 1 2 ROI of a2 background mnvestigation of C.H., defendant
DAVIILA representzd the following.

2. that he had interviewed C.H. about C.H., when, in tuth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not mierviewsd C.H about CH.;

b. that he had interviewed T.S. abowr C.H., when, in truth and in Tact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed T.S. about C.H.
(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

Making a Kalse Statement

The allegations conaining 1n paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are

i~
~J

incorporated hersin by reference as if stated 1 full.

L8, Oz or about June 27, 2007, in the Distict of Columbiz and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in a metier within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the
United Szates, did knowingly and willfullv make a materially false, fctitious, and fraudulent

1

statement and representatiorn, in that in a ROI of 2 background investigaton of D.S., defendant

iy =

reviewed records provided by L.S. 2bout D.S., when. in wuth

[N

DAVIILA represented that he ha

]
Iy
)

fact, defendant DAVIL A had not received env recoras from .S, 2bour D.S

G i

B

¥

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code. Section 101



COUNT 23
Making a False Statement

49, The allegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are

4

incorporated hereir by reference as if stated in full.

[\
\]

50, On or about June 27, 2007, in the Distict of Columbiz and elsewhere, defendant
DAVILA, in a marter within the jurisdictior. of the executive branch of the government of the
United States, dié knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulem
statement and representation. in that in a ROI of 2 background investigation of B.S., defendant
DAVTILA represented the following:

z. that he had interviewed I.W. abour B.S.. when, in truth and in fact,
defendant DAVILA had not interviewed J.W. abou: B.S.;

o that he had reviewed records provided by J.W. about B.S., when, m truth
and in fact, defendant DAVILA had not received any records from J.W. about B.S.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

COUNT 24
Making a False Statednent

31 The zllegations containing in paragraphs one through four of this Indictment are
incorporzied hersin oy reference 25 if steted i full
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DAVILA represented that he had mnterviewed B.r. abour D H., when, in 7uth and in fact,
defendant DAVIL.A had not interviewed B.F about D.H.

(Making a False Statement in Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001)

WC Heclen Ty, /57?9

ATTORNEY FOR THE UNITED STATES IN
AND FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA



